MINUTES OF MEETING
SOUTH-DADE VENTURE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRtCT
The  regular  meeting  of  the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  South-Dade  Venture
Community Development District was held on Thursday, April 25, 2019 at 4:00 p.m., at the Waterstone Bay Clubhouse, 1355 Waterstone Way, Homestead, Florida.
Present and constituting a quorum were:
Curtis Cooper Bradley Compton Miguel Aponte Sonia Castro Mike Lopez
Chairman
Vice Chairman Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary
Also present was:
Paul Winkeljohn Scott Cochran Juan Alvarez Ben Quesada Mario Pascual
District Manager District Attorney District Engineer Clubhouse Director PPK Architects
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS
Mr. Cooper called the meeting to order,
all who attended the meeting.
Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited by
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS
Approval	of  the  Minutes	of  the
February  28, 2019  and March 21,
2019 Meetings
Mr. Cooper:
Alright,  item  No. 2 on the  agenda,  approval  of the  minutes from
previous meetings, February 28, 2019 and March 21, 2019 meetings, do we have a motion
to approve those?
On MOTION by Mr. Compton seconded by Ms. Castro with all in favor, the Minutes of the February 28, 2019 and March 21, 2019 Meetings were approved.
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Mr. Cooper: So, we'll go ahead since we have some guests in attendance, we'll go ahead and move on to them, if that's ok with the rest of the Board?
Mr. Aponte: Yes.
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
Mr. Cooper: Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn: The floor is yours Juan.
Staff Reports
Mr. Cooper: Thank you Mr. Alvarez for coming.
B. Engineer
Mr. Alvarez:  Thank you very much, it's good to see all of you.  So, the last time I was  here the Board had expressed  a wish to expand this clubhouse  and do some
renovations. I met with Mario Pascual from PPK and his associates, and if you have been
to any of the Lennar communities, and their beautiful clubhouses,
Mario  Pascual  and  PPK, they  are  very  well  known  architects, clubhouse architects, and I think they are very well recommended.
well it's because of
urbanist  architects, So, I met with them
and explained to them in general terms that the idea here is to expand the clubhouse as much as the zoning regulations would allow, setbacks, number of additional parking spaces, and all of that. It's kind of complex zoning regulations that you have here because it was Planned Unit Development and I think the kind of activities of the entire development will have an impact on how much you can do in this clubhouse but, I think Mario can enlighten you a little bit better as to what it will take to analyze the situation and what it will take to permit a project like this. So perhaps you can tell Mario also what you would like to have in these interior spaces so that he can form an idea of the scope of work and include in the letter that he provides a proposal to his company for a project. So, Mario you want to expand on that?
Mr. Pascual: Thank you.  I'm very pleased to meet you all. Actually, we were here
more to gather information from you and just to meet you at the moment.
We had
researched a little bit the City of Homestead PUD requirements and the regulations, and supposedly we may have to go to a public hearing if we're going to add more than 5% of the size of the building that the site allows.  It may allow for more than 5% but, regardless
we're going to have to be ready to go to the public hearing, and of course engage a zoning
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attorney, and us to do the layouts, so
some constraints.
it's going to be difficult.  The site has a little bit of
Ms. Castro: I'm sorry to interrupt you, do we need this attorney in any direction that we want to expand or it's only in some instances like if we want to go to the lake?
Mr. Pascual: If you are going to increase the building by more than 5% of the size of the building. I think the building is 4,000 square feet for example·, and 5% would be 200 square feet, so if you stay under 200 square feet, we're fine.
Mr. Cooper: Even a separate building off of this one, any type of separate building off of this one would incur that same 5%?
Mr. Pascual:  That we would have to research. Mr. Cooper:  Ok.
Mr. Pascual: The PUDs are really good for the developers because they write their own rules but yes, the cities do have some rules that 'govern them, and one of the things is, when you present the project, if you go back and change it later on, then you're talking about substantial compliance and issues like that, and if it's written in the rule that it's 5% of the increase of this building, then you're going to be governed by that, unless you go to a public hearing and you want to change it.
Mr. Cooper:  Ok.
Mr. Pascual: And that's how it's handled, the public hearing is usually a zoning attorney.
Mr. Cooper:   Right, and we had to do that for the guardhouse when we went and
applied for those.
Mr. Winkeljohn:
Exactly, because the guardhouses  at the entrance were  added
after the PUD was finished, so we went through that.
Mr. Pascual: But it's doable,  and that's actually the venue to do it. So, I think Andrew and I and Juan would like to get some information from you as far as a program and are you're looking to add offices, a gym or would you be considering going to two stories?
Ms. Castro:  Yes, thank you, we're connected.
Mr. Pascual: That way the site would allow for more if we go to two story with elevators of course you would need to comply with ADA and all of that which is fine, that's very doable.
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Ms. Castro: Ok, so what we're looking for here.
Mr. Cooper:	Well hold on, before we say what we're looking for, do you have anything else you want to elaborate on or is that pretty much it?
Mr. Pascual:
No, I think once we start getting the program, we'll start getting
feedback from you and we start researching the site.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Can I ask a question before we get into those details? Mr. Cooper: Sure.
Mr. Aponte: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn:
The public hearing process is a site plan amendment, a PUD
amendment process, that usually has a 3 to 6, to even 9 month if not more time plan, because you have to get on agendas, and you have to fit into the city's schedule not ours, plus you have the design, so what I'm getting at is, that adds a year to your project, so you're going to have a year of design and regulatory work before you get to a decision point where you might say, no we didn't get permission or it's not worth it. So, it looks like you're going to have another chance to say no, if you said yes to phase one which is what I just described.
Mr. Cooper: Ok.
Mr. Pascual: That sounds about right. Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you.
Mr. Cooper: Go ahead Ms. Castro.
Ms. Castro: Well, essentially what we would need is a room for us to meet in, or for associations to meet in so that we are not interrupted by noise and distractions, so we would need that. We would want a separate room for a bigger gym than what we currently have, so I don't know if you had a chance to take a look at it.
Mr. Pascual: Not yet.
Ms. Castro: So, we want something to be not really as big as a 24 hour fitness, or anything like that, but to have 2 or 3 treadmills, 2 or 3 bikes, 2 or 3 elliptical machines, and more machinery. We would like it overlooking the lake, if possible, and then here we would like to knock this down, and have an open plan, expand our kitchen and potentially if we are going to do a separate building, in that other building, have office space for both management for GMS, as well as for FSI, so that is essentially what we're looking for.
Mr. Pascual: Alright.
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Mr. Aponte:	Is there a way to present, and this is for you Paul, is there a way to present different ideas, is that an option, like this is option 1, this is option 2, and option 3,
and see which one the city would take a bite on?
Mr. Winkeljohn:
I think  he'll probably  answer  it, but I'm going to guess  how he
would answer it, is it's about volume and impact, so it will be square footage, parking, ratio, and those types of things. What you do with the space, and this is sort of subjective value that we get from it, nobody cares. You might have to convince the politicians but they go quasi-judicial, wh.ich means they have to have a really specific thing that impacts when they make a decision not to approve it, am I right Scott, when they do that?
Mr. Cochran:   That's my understanding, yes, we're not zoning attorneys so we're
not experts in doing that kind of stuff.
Mr. Winkeljohn:
Having suffered half my life in those meetings,  I do recall, they
have to be real facts, and quantity driven, not subjective.
Mr. Aponte: So, we're not tied to, ok this is what we're going to do because this is what we think is going to get approved, we can actually go all out, and see what happens.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and if you have a space that you say we might use for a daycare, that's going to trigger a lot of other issues, so it depends on the type of use, and fitness centers are a category and general meeting space is a category, so you have most of that, so you're not doing anything new or creative, it's just volume.
Mr. Compton: Just from what I've seen recently at the city with some other, not exactly like this but, the process as far as that goes, you're going to take your plan or your design, whatever it is, and you'll go to the building and zoning guys and staff members, and they're going to review it, and they're going to say, why don't you tweak this a little bit, can you change that a little bit, we have a problem with this, can you work on that, and we're going to that comprehensive plan that we met with all of the staff and went over it, and changed it and modified it, or whatever needs to be done to the planning and zoning board who is then going to look at that and staff is going to stand up, they're going to say, we looked at everything and our recommendation is to approve, assuming that they will, and planning and zoning is going to say, yes we agree but this has to go to the city council and you go through that same dog and pony show twice more because the city council is going to have a first reading and a second reading there.   So it's not really like you have
multiple options there, but they kind of take what you want to do up there and you kind of
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work out the kinks that you can in the beginning of it, so that's basically the way I've seen it happen.
Mr. Aponte: Thank you. That's where I really wanted to get to, is what should we approach so that it gets approved but if we go all out, and then just have them modify it where it fits what they're looking for, then you can keep going, I just didn't want to waste so much time adding all these rooms.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  And trigger some other project.
Mr. Aponte: Right, and then it's going to create a problem in the future and we're not going to go anywhere.
Ms. Castro:  No, it's just for them to have an idea of what it is that we're looking for. · Mr. Pascual:	Right, and the residents are going to be in agreeme·nt, or are you
going to put it out for a vote?
Ms. Castro:  That is going to be addressed tonight.
Mr. Cooper: What we're trying to get is a, we need to get some type of design that gives us a cost and maybe a couple of different options so that we have maybe option 1, option _2, option 3, and then this way we need to be able to present that to the community and say, do you guys a) want to go through one of these options or not. So, once we get that trigger then that's when we go to phase whatever.
Mr. Aponte: Yes, so ideally what we're looking for is this would just be a clubhouse, and it would be the event room, it's just going to be a gathering place, party place, rental place, that's it.
Mr. Cooper: Right.
Mr. Aponte: We would like a separate structure where it's going to host offices, the gym, bathrooms, that's what we're looking for,  and the largest we can get. I think we talked about 2,000 square feet at one point, but we were constrained to the setbacks, so if we can go larger than that, even better but that's what we're looking for.
Mr. Pascual:	One other person,  I think there's  a layout that someone else had
prepared  before,  do  you  ever  use the  tot  lot?
Is that  something  that's  going  to  be
evaluated right?  You need that replaced somewhere else?
Mr. Aponte:  Yes, the great thing with us with the District, we can move it anywhere in the District so it doesn't really have to be set in this location, so we can definitely do that.
Mr. Pascual:  Ok.
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Mr. Cooper:
Well this was  a space,  and  I don't  know what was  shown to you
because before it was underneath the master too, and now it's underneath the COD, this was all of our property here, so it goes pretty much from here, all around here, up until this whole section here.
Mr. Pascual:· Yes, and Juan gave us that, we have that information. Mr. Cooper:  Ok.
Mr. Aponte: So other than expanding the building, then we also want to expand the deck as far as we can get into the lake, so the whole project, we would like to just get it all done all at once.
Mr. Cooper: We want to be able to transcend 10 or 15 years into the future, even 20 years that we're going to have stuff that is going to be still new.  I guess right now we're a little outdated, I checked out Altis at Kendall, they have poker rooms, they have meeting rooms, they have a little restaurant there that you can rent out, and there's just a lot of amenities that they have, even outdoors you can rent out a gazebo hut that's got a grill and has couches,· so we want to try to make this the space that we have the most efficient that it can be because right now it's very inefficient, and we're doing the best that we can with it but, that's kind of where we want to be.
Mr. Pascual:  Right, ok.
Mr. Cooper: So as far as like adjusting the pool because we had talked about maybe potentially making it like a zero entry, adjusting it to that.
Ms. Castro: Or maybe if we do the zero entry, because Ijust said maybe a waterfall because this is what I saw in another place, maybe you have a new idea but, inside that waterfall we can use probably that space that we have to the side of this building and add a room that could be just an empty room that we can transform from a poker room to a media room, ,to have probably for movie nights for the  children, maybe make it into a theater, so that is what we're looking to bring to the community.
Mr. Cooper: An area like for yoga, if someone wanted to set something up like that, just to be able to have community, or clubhouse amenities, like you would find at a resort.
Mr. Quesada:  A lot of the new developments have those resort style amenities.
Mr. Cooper:   Because unfortunately we can't control the city, or what's going on
around us, but we can at least have some type of an influence of where we're at and if we can make our residents feel at home here and they don't have to leave to go too far to
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experience this, or drive to Kendall, or drive to LA Fitness, and go to the spa, or go to a sauna or just those different things that they have there, it would be nice to have it all here so you don't have to go too far.
Mr. Pascual: Right, and the building looks really nice inside, the other architect has some of those ideas, and he was very knowledgeable, so we just have to continue with that and upgrade it.
Mr. Cooper:  Yes. Mr. Aponte:  Yes.
Mr. Pascual:  Is there going to be a contact person, somebody who is maybe going to provide us a list?
Ms. Castro:  Ben. Mr. Pascual:  Ok.
Mr. Quesada: I'll give you my card. Mr. Pascual: Alright.
Mr. Cooper:  And we had a meeting with community members and they kind of had ideas of what they'd like to see or not see in there, so I believe Ben has that in his notes.
Mr. Pascual:  Ok.  Alright, so I think Juan explained mostly the same things you've told us and we'll be dealing w'ith Juan also and Ben. We'll prepare a proposal for you.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, if you could stage it.
Mr. Pascual:  We can probably break out into stages, exactly, and then provide 2 or 3 options.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  And Scott your firm does have zoning attorneys in place?
Mr. Cochran:  Well Ithink the main guy that did that is not practicing that. Mr. Winkeljohn:  Gerry Knight.
Mr. Cochran:  Right, Gerry's not around much. Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right he retired.
Mr. Cochran: I mean he's a counsel but he's slowed down a lot.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Because I can recommend one if your firm, I mean your firm is our attorney so you would be the first pick obviously.
Mr. Cochran:   Right, yes, and I'll talk it over with the firm but I know technically for zoning stuff we would probably encourage the District to have someone outside our firm.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right.
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Mr. Aponte:  Alright, thank you much. Mr. Pascual: You're welcome.
Ms. Castro: Thank you.
, Mr. Pascual:  Alright, so we'll get back to you on all the stuff. Mr. Cooper:  Thank you.
Mr. Pascual:  And I have some cards here for everyone. Ms. Castro:  Thank you very much.
Mr. Cooper:  One of the things that we were trying to implement that's been difficult
is having a spot to be able to check in for residents when they come because we have a
system  with  wrist  bands,  like a front  desk for  them  to  be able  to check  in.
weekends especially because there's not one set saying, hey go here.
On the
Mr. Aponte:  That could be introduced in the separate building as well, we could
move it there.
Mr.  Quesada:
Right,  with  the  pool  it's  tough  for  the  security  guards  on  the
weekends,  it will make it a little easier, maybe like a little staging area where people can
walk through and get screened and stuff.
Mr. Cooper:
Because this way they  know that, with the  bands that they're  old
enough to be able to go to the gym, and they don't have to keep going up to them, but if we don't have a spot to do that, we got a portable table with an umbrella thing.
Mr. Pascual:	Actually,  the project is not finished  but it's in Pembroke Pines, it's called City Center, and it has a two-story clubhouse that has a lot of the modern stuff.
Mr. Aponte: But the concern I have with the second study is losing the space while under construction and that's our concern, is where do we move the staff, so that's what kind of hurts us a little bit.
Ms. Castro:  There is no way if we're adding a second story here that people can potentially still use the pool.
Mr. Pascual: The pool, probably.
Ms. Castro:  Ok, but not the gym.  So maybe if we do not need to have a gym while we are doing that, we always rent, you know they have those trailers for the schools whe.n· they're building, they come and they put those in, we can rent that for the staff and they could have that, and then the pool because that is really the main concern for the people
here, it's the pool, not really the gym.
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Mr. Aponte:	Right, you can bring in a trailer and have offices but we still have a
pool that people are paying for.
Ms. Castro: Mr. Aponte: Ms. Castro:
Mr. Lopez:
No but he's saying that yes, that the pool could be used. Potentially.
So, we'll explore that option, once we get to that stage.
Isn't there a rule that if you are expanding you need to add parking, not
just parking, more concrete, you also add water features, green areas.
Mr. Pascual:  We will lose green areas.
Mr. Lopez: You're technically talking about expanding this clubhouse, which means that a certain percentage of green areas, a certain percentage of water features, you have to add those percentages to the building.
Mr. Pascual: What we'll have to  do is analyze the entire green areas that are allowed in the PUD and see whether we have excess.
Mr. Cooper:  Ok.
Mr. Pascual:  If we have excess then we don't have to provide that. Mr. Lopez:  It's not as easy as saying, we're just going to expand this. Mr. Aponte:  No.
Mr. Cooper: And we have the additional percentage that we didn't have before with the extra property that we have because it was under the master. When this was built, it was under the master association and then the COD wound up acquiring it over that so that adds all this extra land.
Mr. Cooper: The other thing too that was mentioned that we were exploring and it hasn't panned out yet was doing lighting in the back to be able to utilize the pool after sundown, so if that could be possibly thrown in there.
Mr. Compton: Just from a practical perspective what I've seen with the city recently, and I don't know how much you've been dealing with the City of Homestead specifically on changes to it and whatnot, the two big areas they're going to be interested in when it gets to the council level is, what affect is this going to have on traffic, traffic is a major issue right now with a couple of the councilmen and the second thing is the green space, so when you're thinking about this design, consider those two items.
Mr. Pascual:  Right, and Andrew has dealt with the city, especially lately.
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Ms. Castro: people.
Mr. Aponte:
Ms. Castro:
How would it affect parking?	I mean we serve the same amount of
Not parking, you mean traffic.
Yes.
Mr. Compton: I understand, it's not going to, I'm just saying that in order for them to consider this is by changing the parking and where the parking is at. For instance, one of the plans we looked at last month had parking that was right next to the street, and I would imagine from a practical perspective that's going to have some impact on the flow of traffic in that particular area, and I can assure you things like that are going to be unfavorable by some of them.
Mr. Aponte:  I think we're all in agreement with that.
Mr. Compton:  So, the city will have a problem with that.
Mr. Cooper: But we do want to slow down the traffic flow a little bit because people go way past 30 mph. So, we talked about having a little barrier along Waterstone Way and then having being able to pull that way.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Anything else?
Mr. Aponte:  Thank you so much. Mr. Winkeljohn:  Thank you.
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS
Consideration
of
Resolution
#2019-03 Approving the Proposed
Fiscal
Year
2020
Budget
and
Setting the Public Hearing
Mr.  Cooper:	Alright,  we're  moving on to item No. 3, consideration  of resolution
#2019-03 approving the proposed fiscal year 2020 budget and setting the public hearing. Mr. Winkeljohn?
Mr. Winkeljohn:	Yes, so before you is the draft budget that we put together that reflects obviously the current year  operations.	The  key highlights that are changed  is
$130,000 increase across the whole community to generate funds for storm recovery and other larger maintenance projects that may have been deferred for quite a while now because of that level of funding just was hard to dedicate to one large project, so for the
last several years we've been doing  medium to small size projects.   So, the logic you
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presented to consider an increase is still the same, it's $100 per unit increase. You guys are familiar with the budget process but just a quick overview today, we're adopting the ceiling of our assessment level. We can adopt the final assessment no sooner than 60 days from when we propose. We traditionally meet that by holding our hearing closer to August, the August 22nd date is when I would propose that you hold your adoption hearing that gives the time that we like to have between now and the cutoff date which is June 15th to set the highest possible assessment, but we've had lots of feedback and discussion so I think what I have in front of you is that $100 per unit increase.  There's nothing in here for a clubhouse expansion; that's probably a year away is what it's sounding like, so this year's budget is simply hurricane recovery and project funding.
Ms. Castro: August 22nd?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  That's what I'm recommending, yes. Mr. Aponte:  Ok, well I'll make the motion.
Mr. Lopez:  So, security went up $7,787, proposed for 2020?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, remember when we changed contractors, we absorbed their bonuses, we racked the basic pay that they were making and so that's what you're going to be paying next year, so that increase was related to the contract that you adopted.
Mr. Lopez:  Club operation/staff, $17,000 increase? Ms. Castro:  Right because we hired Myra.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, that's the staff buildout budgeted for 4 years that includes the attendants for the summer.
Mr. Lopez:  So, it went up $17,000?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  That's the budget amount, yes sir.
Mr. Lopez:  Pool maintenance increased by $11,000, that's all I have. Mr. Cooper:  Ok, Mr. Compton?
Mr. Compton: I expect that especially after the hurricane costs from a year plus by now, and the issue with last year that some increase is going to be necessary. I do not think and I cannot support $100 increase, I think that is way too much in my opinion. I don't think that we need that. I think that we can do something much less than that, and have a reasonable budget in which we can maintain a level of services that our residents expect and improve on those as we need to.  While I understand setting the ceiling and
today  is not setting the final amount,  I just  know how these things often work and that
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ceiling amount is what will be ultimately adopted.  While I'm fine for setting the meeting on that August 22nd date, I cannot support this budget as that ceiling on that for that reason.
Mr. Lopez: I'd like to say one more thing since I actually made a note here, at one meeting I said $100, I think I also mentioned that, but I made a mistake, because we had agreed to a $60 increase.
Mr. Aponte:  Right. Ms. Castro:  Yes.
Mr. Lopez: So, I think my numbers, and I don't know if Curtis had mentioned $100 or $200 during that meeting.
Ms. Castro:   $150 was mentioned, $100 was mentioned, $75 and then we agreed
on $60.
\
Mr. Lopez:  Right, so I don't why, but Ithink a $100 increase.
Mr. Cooper:  But that was last year's meeting when we decided it would be $60.
Mr. Aponte: Right, we went down to $60, I think I hear what you're saying, I think it just gives you enough time to kind of chew through it and see what we have upcoming and this next project. I'm with you, I do feel that $100 is too much, and,we've talked about it, and I was set on $60, I think I'm still set on $60, but it doesn't hurt to have a little bit of wriggle room in case we do find something out between now and August, but I understand that.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Let me give you a word of caution there, you are going to, if you want to lower it, and there's a consensus to lower it, let's do some of that now, not all of it necessarily, but some of it now because what you're going to do is, you're going to send a letter to every resident saying, we're proposing this, and we may lower, but if you go way higher you're sort of setting yourself up for more headaches. So, if th,at's the sound of the Board, that's excellent, let's nail that number closer now, and you still have stepping off points below that as you move forward.
Ms. Castro:  Ok, so I do have a question.
Mr.  Lopez:
Ok,  I'm sorry can  I just  say  one  more thing,  but also say that we
decrease the budget by $46,749, could I say that as well?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  What did we decrease?
Mr. Lopez:  Well, I hope I'm doing my math right. Mr. Cooper:  Alright Mike, what page are you on?
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Mr. Lopez: Well, if we look at this from this perspective. Mr. Cooper:  What page?
Mr. Aponte:  There's no page number. Mr. Lopez:  There's no page numbers.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ijust noticed the numbers didn't print.
Mr. Lopez:  Section 3, so if you look here at pool maintenance for example. Mr. Compton:  You're looking at just the clubhouse.
Mr. Aponte:  You're looking at just clubhouse now, yes.
Mr. Lopez:  Right, so this is the clubhouse, so I can say that even with the staffing at
$17,000 here, and the one that I also mentioned, the $7,000 increase, I can say that the clubhouse here has also decreased $46,749 because if your pool maintenance goes down, right?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  You're mixing two assessments. Mr. Aponte:  Yes.
Mr. Lopez:  Is that what Iwas doing? Mr. Aponte:  Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, you can't combine the clubhouse assessment.
Mr. Lopez:	Right, I know, just listen, just focusing  on the clubhouse, this is just clubhouse right now.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, go ahead.
Mr. Lopez: Just for the sake of seeing the numbers, we can say that there's going to be a decrease in the budget of $46,749, because if you take a $14,000 decrease of repairs  and maintenance,  a $11,680  decrease  in pool maintenance,  and you take the
$21,069 decrease in clubhouse reserves, oh wait that's reserves.
Mr. Aponte:  Right, you're throwing me off.
Mr. Lopez: So, take off $21,000 of that, so it's $14,000 and $11,000, decrease.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Well, I'm having a little trouble here, there's two fixed numbers, the assessments to the general community.
Mr. Lopez:  It's a decrease though.
Mr. Aponte:
identical.
Well,  yes  and  no because  if you  look  at the  bottom  number,  it's
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Mr. Winkeljohn: which  is  your  general
clubhouse assessment.
In the revenue line you have two fixed revenue sources, one of
assessment  to  all  property  owners,  the  second  one  is  your
Mr. Lopez:  Right, but it stays the same, the lines are still $274,000 and $274,000 Mr. Winkeljohn:	Right, that's the clubhouse, it's $272,000, those did not change.
The general assessment is $1.6 million, and the proposed at $100 per unit is $1.8 million,
that's  the  increase,  it's exactly  $226,000  increase.
You're  absorbing  some
line item recovery, bit of the
and have
increases,  and  I mentioned the  biggest one which  is $130,000  for  hurricane
you're also replenishing $60,000 in contingency  is missed, or is lost.   A  little discussion  last year, which we were working on was to replenish our reserves
I
project money, and of course now we know more and more, it's more and more likely that we will not see FEMA money, and I'll talk about that in more detail later. So those are the things on your plate for the increase.
Ms. Castro:  Yes, so that was my question, what happens to the FEMA money?
Mr. Winkeljohn: The first denial we got was a small one, it was for stump grinding, which the fact that we did it fast is what hurt us, had we done the stump grinding another week later we would have had time to go get bids and do it that way, but we did it under what we thought was the emergency phase of it. So that one was the first denial we had gotten, and while I was talking to them about the denial, they told me they're all coming back denied, and the reason they're  all denied is because the District, and no District purchases anything under federal purchasing guidelines. Federal purchasing bid requirements do not affect CDDs and nor did we ever follow them, we followed state guidelines and what had happened is the funds had gone to the state, we started getting some of them, the state auditors, the KPMG who was their contractor, they were telling us check, check, check, everything is good, and we should be releasing the money any time now. Magically, FEMA came back in and said we're denying all those projects because they made a determination, probably politically I'm guessing, that they wanted to stall or stop the funding, and so they re-evaluated what was approved, what was obligated to the state, and denied it. We would have had to hire a classic county or large city debris hauling company through a formal bid process like Ashley Brit, or Grubbs or one of those big companies,  and have them do our cleanup but we used our own landscaper, which
historically worked but this time it didn't.  So I'll file the appeals on really subjective criteria
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that there wasn't any time to hire that, historically when those firms are hired they don't show up, and then you have to re-hire somebody else, and we're a District, so I'm going to put all those arguments in bullets but, technically we are denied for a legal reason that we can't change.
Ms. Castro:  Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's material though.
Mr. Cooper:
budget.
It pertains to what we're  discussing  right now with  regards to the
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, go ahead sir?
Mr. Compton:   Is there a legal basis play?   Is there rules and regulations in place
that  essentially  we  chose  not to  follow  with  respect  to  federal  contractors,  but  just something they're trying to make up as they go after the fact?
Mr. Winkeljohn:
There's  a couple  of ways  that  I think that's  playing  out.
The
purchasing guidelines have always been in place for larger jurisdictions and historically your first few weeks, which is what we were under, were always, called forced accounts, where basically you hire whoever you have to and we'll pay a rate up to certain allowable rates, if they overcharge you, we're not going to pay that. That was how FEMA dealt with it. This time they made a determination that all federal purchasing guidelines should have been followed. So, the rules are both out there, they just decided to interpret this stack versus the historic stack.
Ms. Castro:  And there is nothing we can do about it, probably talk to other Districts. Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, everybody is in the same boat.
Mr. Compton: Just going back to where I think you're going with this, it's more of a legal question I think than anything else. So my question is not practically what have they done in the past, it's more of, what is the letter of law, and if they're trying to change things along the way, then I suspect this is going to affect quite a few of them and I think we ought to be looking at action against them here, not just at our District level but if we could pull together more Districts, like a class action type of thing, but that's only going to work though if they truly are changing the rules and regulations along the way. We can't go back to but this is what you always did.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right.
Mr. Compton:  And that's kind of where I was going.
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Mr. Cooper: But ultimately too though, that the issue is that we didn't bid out the contract and get the rate, well what's the rate, what should it have been and go ahead and play this up to whatever that would have been, not deny the entire thing, it's not like you can pretend like the storm didn't happen.
Ms. Castro: Yes, because germane to this conversation is, then if we are going to be denied and we are going to be involved in this suit against FEMA and whatnot, then we need to really look at the past because the $60 is not going to cover if for example, we are going to be hit this year again, and we don't know this, by another hurricane, and we do need to have in our pockets another $100,000 to have lying around in the event that we have to go through the horse and pony show again but, now we know that we need to bid it out, and do 3 people and all the charades that they want us to play but, we do have to have in the back of our heads, we need what we need because we're having to tend to the District but we need to also build up at least $100,000 to have in our pockets for cleanup for a hurricane because FEMA can come back and say, you're out of luck.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, Iwant to answer a few of those. I've actually, because I do not only Districts, I do a lot of municipalities and there is a little bit of a ground swell because we were the first in, so we're the first to get the denials, so I've gone down that road. I actually have one of the consultant's appeals that's been written, and I'm looking at that. I've got a few other Districts in this area that are going to be denied for the same exact reason, I've got a plan of that to offer you so I agree with that reaction, and we're not going to make a decision today but that's something we should pursue and see if we can get some traction, either through a legal, or a lobbyist type approach, that's totally been the way I think we should react. Now, there is another solution that I'm recommending to all my  Districts  is,  that  what  we  do for  this  coming  storm  season  is we  find  either  the
immediate, like City of Homestead would be my first recommendation, is to piggyback on
their  contract  for  hauling  and  removal  and that  would  be our  contractor.
One, what
happens is they don't show up when you're this size, and I've been a city manager of a city with 50,000 people that they didn't show  up because Hurricane Charley because there
was so much work north of here, that they went to the first one that was going to pay the
bill and  all their subs stopped  there and  never came further  south.
It's a really fickle
market in that respect, and then once the first wave of contractors starts to work, the next
wave doubles the price, and they tried to pass laws to stop that this year, or a year and a
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half ago, but that's still the reality of the
business.  So I would say the greatest likelihood of
success is to identify the hauler that the county and the City of Homestead are using, subcontract or piggyback on that contract which already meets the requirements, and piggyback is allowed in the federal guidelines, so we don't have to go through that kind of process, but because the bids we would get would be horrendous because of the volume, it's a volume based business. So that's one of the avenues we're going to have to go to be prepared and I'm working on that.
Mr. Cooper: Well, can I just expand upon that real quick, so if we do it the right way that FEMA wants so we can get reimbursed, there's potential for us not having our community and the families within the communities taken care of for a month or two months down the road, and now are sacrificing money for taking care of and doing the right thing.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, there's two steps, one get a qualifying contract in place, the second step is decide whether to use it or not, and if you have a situation where you're saying, ok this $50,000 to $70,000 worth of work, the way they're going to clean it up is going to cost us $100,000 in quality or whatever, let's not do it, and let's just do what we normally do, and eat it, that would be the business decision and you as residents and the leaders to make that call but, like an Andrew level storm, that actually is the type of contract you would want in place because ValleyCrest or BrightView or whoever, that level of contractor, yes they have capability but not like Andrew, because they're going to be destroyed.
Ms. Castro: I have a question though, in the event that we do have T's crossed and l's dotted, and we have this piggyback contract, and we decide not to use it because of time or whatever, will FEMA deny us again?
Mr. Winkeljohn: We wouldn't ask for a reimbursement because we know, or we could try, I'm saying you don't try but, we would expect the same result, right?
Ms. Castro: But if we tell FEMA, listen this is the process that we went through, this is what we had in place, and a month later we're still not cleaned, or does FEMA not care about time constraints?
Mr. Winkeljohn:   In today's reaction, they don't care, we're paying claims that meet
every requirement we can find perfectly, that's the message.
1a
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Mr. Aponte: So the responsible thing for us to do is, set money aside at least for the first phase which is clearing the roads, and that would be where we want to keep some funds aside, I would think so, because we obviously want the road to be cleared and then we'll have time to figure out ok, are we going to hire this company and go through the process for the cleanup service, and just set that aside, just a pickup but, I think we're going to have to have money aside just for that one first phase which is clean up the roads, get them passable for the residents.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right and historically back to what we were talking about with Brad's comment, that used to be, or they don't even care how you hire that person, historically, this is a reversal of that policy.
Mr. Aponte: Got you.
Mr. Lopez:	And just seeing  how much we spent  on gate maintenance  repairs,
$85,620, that's $7,000 a month on gate repairs.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, well those repairs include the upgrades, painting, the speed humps, and the bar code program, so we bit off a lot of new upgrades.
Ms. Castro:  You need to think also about the times that people have hit our gates
and then those are also reimbursed.
Mr.  Lopez:
If you take  $75,000,  and we're  projecting  over the  next 6 months
$21,000, we're going to be looking at.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Which line are you on, I'm sorry?
Mr. Quesada:  The guardhouse maintenance budget.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, and don't forget some of the projects are very conservative in terms of projecting the most amount of expenditure versus the least because of the nature of government, we typically project out.
Mr. Lopez: Well they have to be conservative projections.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and conservative in the opposite way, conservative meaning higher than regular.
Mr. Lopez: Ok, so back to this, which is germane to our discussion, if you take this into consideration, that's only $5,000 technically.
Mr. Winkeljohn:   In $75,000 is, $25,000 per gatehouse, and that could be the air
conditioners, it could be a door, we don't know.
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Mr. Lopez: Taking into consideration we're not going to invest all that money for the gates, and I mean I understand, gates get hit by vehicles, trucks or whatever.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, it's the whole envelope.
Mr. Lopez::	The whole  package, we  still can't assume that, there's  going to be
$54,000 based off of what we're projecting available in case of an emergency.
Ms. Castro:  Right, but we don't really know that.
Mr. Lopez: We don't, just like we don't know if a hurricane is going to hit us.
(At this point there was too much cross-talking among the Board members to hear any one conversation)
Mr. Compton: · I think, even with, if we had a max of hypothetically of $70, maybe we could come down to $50 or something.
Mr. Lopez:  There was a time where I also mention $100.
Mr. Compton: Just taking Ms. Castro's hypothetical, the worse case scenario of we do get it by another similar hurricane, even with those lower numbers like I would like to see, there's plenty of wriggle room in this budget that we could maintain a high level of services and still be able to do all of those things that we need to do.
Mr. Cooper: Also too though, with that, we've been doing projects and it seems like when we've been wanting to do projects we've been having to wait a year or two years or three years down the road, and then when we catch up with that project then all these other things have been maintenance-wise having to be neglected so, I don't want to put us in a position if we're going to raise assessments and it's not $150 and it's not $50, and we could nickel and dime, $75 or $80, and I think when we were discussing it and we made the decision to make it $100 it seemed fair to be able to keep the District moving in a forward direction, while not burdening the residents in the process. Over the past years the last time we raised assessments was like 5 or 6 years ago, actually longer than that, we actually gave money back to residents.
Mr. Lopez:  So, you want $100?
Mr. Cooper:  I'd rather keep the budget where it is right now. Mr. Winkeljohn:  The proposed budget.
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Mr. Cooper: Right, the proposed budget, and if in the next couple of months we have an opportunity to lower it we can, but just not receiving the FEMA money, that's been over a year now, and that was huge, and our reserves took a hit for that.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And there's one more thing, I just want to refresh your memories on the FEMA money, in the likelihood, but I'm not feeling very positive about this, but that we do win the appeal, that's more than a year away also, so that's part of this equation, is you will not see, because you were denied, they have that 240 day window to respond.
Mr. Compton: Yes, but there's no line item in here where we were expecting to get that, in this budget where we were expecting to get that FEMA money.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  No.
Mr. Compton: So, if it comes, or if we win an appeal and get it a year from now, or two years from now, that's a windfall, that doesn't harm us because we don't get it back.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right.
Mr. Lopez: But what we're trying to say, and Brad also expressed this, we're not going to die with the scenario here, there are areas that we can work with, and the one I mentioned, the gate maintenance and repair, we understand we're budgeting $25,000 per gate.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, and on a scale that would be one, but not top pick.
Mr. Lopez:  Right, but there's roughly $50,000 there in maintenance.
Mr. Winkeljohn:
The  most discretionary  thing  that  you  have  is your  enhanced
security line, the enhanced security line covers two animals. One of them is the off duty patrol, which is a valve, you can turn that valve tighter, and change your expense rate quickly, and there's a larger chunk, not a larger chunk but a chunk of that which was designated for the enhancement part of upgrades which are camera systems, originally
what we were picking off the remote camera systems.   So that money is not contracted
and  it's  not dedicated  to  anything.
The  next one down,  which  is what  you  did  after
Hurricane Irma, that's of a large volume is the holiday decorating, you scaled back your holiday decorations, and you recovered saving there, so those are the two quick larger valves that you can turn down or completely off.
Mr. Aponte:  Yes.
Mr. Quesada:	Our contract is up at the end of the year, that's something we're going to be having people from COi coming to the next meeting.
21


April 25, 2019
South-Dade Venture COD
Mr. Lopez:  So, what we're saying is what Paul just mentioned, like we deal with the hurricane, prime example, we cut back on the holiday lighting idea.  We thought it was
approprjate to do so, and we saved money.
Mr. Cooper: Mr.  Lopez:
hurricanes?
Ms. Castro: Mr. Cooper: Mr. Aponte:
Ms. Castro:
But at the cost of everyone.
It's just  increasing  taxes  to  increase  a  reserve  account,  just  for
Oh no. No.
No.
That's not what I'm saying at all.
Mr. Lopez: Another one, enhanced security for example, actual is $91,857, we're budgeting $267,000.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  You're looking at the actual to date line?
Mr. Lopez: To date line yes, at $91,000 and we're projecting $174,000 Mr. Winkeljohn:  We're projecting all of it, yes.
Mr. Lopez:  But we're budgeting $267,000, so that's another $50,000. Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, that was the line Ijust described.
Mr. Lopez:  Now there's another $100,000 right there if we were to need that.
Mr. Aponte: Right, and when I said the hurricane thing, I didn't mean that, I'm just saying that's just another line item that we should have on here knowing now how FEMA is going to operate that we're going to have to eat some of that cost regardless.
Mr. Lopez:  Ok, right.
Mr.  Aponte:
Especially  the  phase  one,  which  may  not  be too  expensive  but
depending on how many trees fall on the roads, so that should be something going in as a line item is what I was mentioning.
Mr. Lopez: Because there's money here that we actually utilize in case of an emergency.
Mr. Cooper: But also too though, the enhanced security, if we drop down and we get rid of the off duty detail, I'm just saying, if you're looking for money, talking about reducing enhanced security, know that's less presence in our District for the residents who
we increased taxes for that specific purpose.
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Mr. Lopez: Well, obviously Homestead has, and we've spoken about this in the past, since we have an enhanced security program, they sit back in their chairs and they don't hire more police officers, we know this, look back, but now we're projecting $174,000 in the next 6 months.
Ms. Castro: Ok, but bear in mind that if we do have an emergency of any sort, we wouldn't want to touch that line item because I would like to increase security here, instead of decrease it.
Mr. Lopez: No, what we're saying is, and I agree with the enhanced security, I actually requested at a certain point to see if we had an off duty available, but we've cut significantly from $267,000 to $91,000 and now we're projecting $174,000 over the next 6 months, but in the proposed budget it's $267,000 so God forbid in case of an emergency we can say technically we have, and not just based on the,$267,000, but based on the
$174,000, because we projected $267,000 here, so there's money available in case of an emergency.
Mr. Aponte: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: By design. Mr. Lopez: Yes, by design.
Mr. Compton: Just getting back to it, I think for clarification purposes here, we said we're not increasing, or we would not be increasing taxes to have a line item on here for hurricane recovery, but if you say we need to increase taxes so there will be plenty of money for it, and you put it in another category, essentially you're doing the same thing, it's just that if you don't have that hurricane next year, and now all of a sudden you have a justification for spending another $100,000 or $50,000 or whatever it happens to be in one particular line item. You can say, now we said tree trimming we're going to spend an extra
$50,000, well we didn't have that hurricane, so now we can take that extra $50,000 and go spend it somewhere else, essentially that is a line item, it's like a justification for spending it somewhere else if you don't need it. So, it may not be written as a line item on here, but that's kind of what we're saying.
Ms. Castro: But correct me if I'm wrong, if you have a line item for a specific thing, because at least on the HOA side it is that way, if you have a line item specifically written
for a certain purpose, it has to be used for that purpose.
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Mr. Winkeljohn:
No, this  Board can change  every  line  item on there, with the
exception  of, you  know, getting yourself  into a contractual  problem.
So things you're
contracted for, you're obligated to until you change the contract, but the things you are not contracted for, which are, what I call more discretionary items are, which would be enhanced security, which includes two components, off duty officers, which is a valve you
turn up or down, and the security systems, the cameras, that one is the most flexible, the
others  are  contractual  but  you  have  points  of  control.
Contingencies  are obviously,
contingencies, they're not obligated. Now, every other line item, or any of those line items, this Board can change, and as the budget evolves you can re-apply money from one spot to another which you in essence did when you added a lot of things to the gate area, and went over budget on the gate, by the end of the year I'll hand you an amendment resolution to fix that but, I just left it there for now because I like to have them all at once but, that was a conscious choice by this Board to change it.
Ms. Castro:  Ok.
Mr. Quesada: Just one thing, and this is just food for thought, and it's not going to dig too deep into the budget but, the roadway marking project is something that we're estimating the mid $30,000, and that's something that I know has come up a lot on the project list as one of our top priorities, so just keep in mind there's things like that. I know we want to maybe add some more lights to the front just in general to have it more lit up at night, so just keep in mind some of those projects that we have in the works.
Ms. Castro: My primary concern really would be to have money in our budget to really reduce the speed that we have going on here on Waterstone Way, that really is my
primary driving force.
(At this point there was too much cross-talking among the Board members to hear any one conversation)
Mr. Aponte:   So, can we amend then this motion to set the ceiling at $75, are you guys comfortable with $75 or $70?
Mr. Cooper: Well I think in order to entertain that you have to make a motion, and then second it, and then we can discuss it.
Mr. Winkeljohn: No, you're in discussion.
Mr. Cooper:  Ijust wanted to make sure we're doing things right.
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Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's ok, we can take an amendment to this motion and we'll get you through it.
Mr. Aponte:  So, amend at $70? Mr. Compton:  I could go with $70.
Mr. Lopez:  Why not do it at $60 like we were?
Mr. Cooper:  Why are we throwing numbers out there, like $78?
Mr. Lopez:  $60 is the number we had already done our math, and we had actually come to an agreement with before we didn't actually increase the taxes, right?
Ms. Castro: Yes.
Mr. Lopez:  So now we want it at $70?
Mr. Cooper: Mr. Lopez:
was $60.
Ms. Castro: you went to $60.
Mr. Cooper:
Why did you decide to move it to $100?
I made a mistake, you had mentioned $100, and I actually thought it
No, he mentioned $150, and you last year made it to $100, and then
Well there were  reasons why you were saying at $100, but I can't
remember what you said.
Mr. Lopez:  We actually went from $60 to I think $40 at one point, and then we went back to $60.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's not material necessarily, what's material is what would you like to do now?
Mr. Lopez:  My personal opinion, I think that if we had already agreed at $60, that we should be at $60.
Ms. Castro:  How much money will $60 give us?
Mr. Cooper:  $136,000 or $140,000, probably a little bit less than that. Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's almost exactly $100,000 less.
Ms. Castro:  Ok, so when we created that roundabout, at the school, more or less how much money was that, do you remember?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  The roundabout was about $80,000 to $90,000. Mr. Lopez: Wait, where are we creating another roundabout?
Ms. Castro:  For the traffic control.
Mr. Lopez:  But where though, where are we going to make it?
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Ms. Castro:  Along Waterstone Way, that could be determined by the experts.
Mr. Winkeljohn: One of the best solutions for traffic control is traffic calming and reshaping your roads with medians, roundabouts, and there's a whole list of things that you could pick off for different prices that would help.
Mr. Lopez:  As long as we don't do it in front of Floridian Bay Estates.
Mr. Cooper: But also too, that's just for the roundabout, and like a medjool palm, and a couple trees around there, if you're doing a roundabout, then you're going to start adding trees along that path to be able to shrink the roadway down to be able to get the same effect.
Mr. Lopez:  I really don't think the roundabout is the answer to our problem.
(At this point there was too much cross-talking among the Board members to
hear any one conversation)
Mr. Winkeljohn: There is a whole profession out there that can help us get there, but we can't do it right now.
Mr. Lopez: Alright, that's fine.
Mr. Cooper:  Paul, do we have a line item for projects at all here?
Mr. Winkeljohn: That's the second to the bottom line, hurricane recovery project that is really the un-encumbered funds that we've just been talking about, and the line under that is contingency for $60,000, that's most of where the new revenue went, some of it went to balance other lines that were over. So, this will be what we're getting for that line item and then the next one.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, right.
Mr. Cooper: And that's going back to the reserves, or that's what is going to be available for next year?
Mr. Winkeljohn: That would be available for next year, and anything else you don't spend would benefit your reserves.
Ms. Castro: Ok, going back to what Iwas saying, so the other money is for what we envisioned, to bring the outdoor gym equipment  along the entire Waterstone Way and probably Waterstone Blvd.
Mr. Cooper:  Ben's printing out the list.
Mr. Lopez:  Outdoor gym equipment?
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Ms. Castro:
Mr. Lopez:
Yes.
That's the one that looks like that people just do like their own body
weight to do the machines?
Ms. Castro:  Yes, and that was discussed in probably one of the meetings that you weren't here for.
Mr. Cooper:  One of the meetings that you didn't show up to.
Mr. Lopez:  Well I don't think gym equipment out on Waterstone Way would benefit anyone.
Mr. Cooper: Ben's printing out a list of the proposed budget list, and we can get a better feel of what we're looking to do in the District, and that will dictate what we want to set the amount at.
Ms. Castro:  Ok, so if want to see an example of what it looks like.
Mr. Lopez:  I know what they are.
Ms.  Castro:
Well,  but  you  should  drive  to  Oasis,  they  have  a  whole  bunch
throughout the entire District.
Mr. Lopez: Waterstone Way is not really a good location. Ms. Castro:  It's by the lakes.
Mr. Quesada: This is not the whole budget numbers, but it's the projects so you'll have an idea what they cost.
Mr. Cooper:  Thank you.
Mr. Compton: A lot of these bigger projects like we're talking about, reshaping the road, putting a roundabout in, that's not something we'll be pulling the trigger on in September or October or whatever, it's going to have to go through a major process that's going to encompass several budgets down the road, there might be some designing and planning, which would easily fall within our budget that we already have for but, the actually dollars and cents of that, is going to come down the road, so we don't need to be increasing right now for something that we might be doing in two years with respect to that.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok, so we need you on the record Sonia. Ms. Castro:  No, I'm sorry.
Mr. Lopez:  So, there's a discussion at $60, and Brad said $70.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  $70 and $60 is a $22,000 difference, $22,269 to be exact. Mr. Lopez:  So, do you want $60 or $70, I guess it's a majority vote.
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Ms. Castro: Ok, what do you go with? Some people want $60 and other people want $70, a happy medium $65 that gives us $11,000 each of the two parties give a little bit, give $5?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Don't forget it is the ceiling, so at the adoption if you really think about it, and feel, let's go down $5, if there's a room full of people, and they really convince you to go down, you have to have somewhere to go, so just keep that in mind.
Mr. Cooper: Alright, just looking at our project list that we have, the current one from 2019, walkways taken care of, tree replacement, have we done any of that?
Mr. Quesada: No, zero.
Mr. Cooper: So, $130,000, $44,000 is pending, we haven't gotten any money back from FEMA just to replace the trees that were lost in the District. $126,000 for arboricola project, replacing the ficus to all buttonwood hedges, that's been on hold for a .while. Bougainvillea, guardrail, that's $3,000, that's not a huge item there, then you have the Waterstone Way entrance median landscaping, and we've been talking about that for how many years to go ahead and start doing that?
Ms. Castro: For about 6 years.
Mr. Cooper: That's $12,000 right there, outdoor fitness equipment, whether or not we do or don't do it, that's $30,000 right there if you wanted to go ahead and put that in
Waterstone. or whatever, landscaping
$247,7000.
We've got the weights for the gym here, that's obviously on the gym budget that's $9,000, but then we had talked about doing landscape, LED lights, the lighting to enhance the security, as well as the look of our District, that's
So we're talking about a couple dollars here to nickel and dime to take away
things, but then if some things do happen, notice that we're going to be stagnant on all these projects here because we'll be able to afford maybe one of them in this next year,
.and then next year we're going to have to go ahead and say, yes we want to go ahead and raise so we can go ahead and do an arboricola project or LED project so, I just don't want to keep dancing around having to nickel and dime when we have the opportunity here to set it, and then if things come in with FEMA we can get some extra money there, then that
$130,000 for the tree replacement will be there but, right now we have thousands of dollars that we could influx into the District for projects and we're stagnant because we've been waiting.
Mr. Compton: What do you recommend we do?
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Mr. Cooper: I'm one person, I'm recommending keeping it at the $100 and allowing us to put this money back into where people actually see, it's not going into our pockets, it's going to be visible in the District and during the hard time when we actually nickeled
and dimed and cut back, and we were still doing little things here and there to make our
community desirable so people could move in, and families and create what we have now, I think it would do it a disservice if we all of sudden now, cut back on what we can influx back to continue giving and continue moving us in a forward progress with the comunity.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Is there any direction? Mr. Compton:  $70 it is.
Ms. Castro:  You won't give us $75?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Is there a motion to amend? Mr. Aponte:. Yes, a motion to $70.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Very good, and in that motion was the August 22nd adoption date? Mr. Aponte:  Yes, that was included.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  And 4:00 is ok?
Mr. Aponte:  4:00 o'clock sounds great.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  So, you want to do the public hearing at 4:00 o'clock?
Mr. Cooper: Actually, do we want to do that? Do we want to do that later at 6:00 so that people can have an opportunity to go too?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's up to the Board.
Ms. Castro: I think that we have the quorum today where they will be coming here and they can discuss that, we can tell them what the ceiling is going to be, and they can express all those opinions tonight, and then not do it at 6:00 o'clock on the 22nd.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And in case some of you, like the things, the most comfortable term it's $5.80 a month, for the $70.
Mr. Compton: I appreciate what Sonia is saying with respect to the time, but I think the more opportunity we can give our residents to come here and talk to us, the better off we are, the more transparent we are, especially if we're going to be increasing it so I would be more in favor of having it at 6:00.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Is that the consensus? Mr. Aponte:  6:00 o'clock?
Mr. Cooper:  6:00 o'clock.
1
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Ms. Castro:  That gives me more time to see more patients.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  So, the now approved amended motion is for August 22nd at 6:00
p.m. at this location and resolution #2019-03 amended to a $70 increase, all in favor?
opposed?
Any
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
Staff Reports (Cont.)
Mr. Cooper: Alright, moving on to staff reports, Mr. Attorney?
A. Attorney
Mr. Cochran:  I actually don't have anything to report.
Ms. Castro:  Do we have anything pressing because then Iwould call recess?
Mr. Winkeljohn:	The only thing I need a motion on is the check
run and
balance
sheet.
C.  Engineer
There not being any, the next item followed.
D. Field Manager
There not being any, the next item followed.
E.  Manager
There not being any, the next item followed.
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
A. Approval of Check Run Summary
Financial Reports
B. Balance Sheet and Income Statement
Mr. Winkeljohn:	The only thing I need a motion on is the check
run and
balance
sheet.
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On MOTION by Mr. Aponte seconded by Mr. Compton with all in favor, amending the original motion reducing the assessment increase from $100 to $70 and also approving Resolution #2019-03 for the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Budget and setting the Public Hearing on August 22, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. at 1355 Waterstone Way, Homestead, Florida was approved.
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Ms. Castro:  So moved.
Mr. Quesada: I just have one proposal, we have our scanners, going back to the guardhouse budget, our scanners are 3 years old, we were told they would last about 3 years, and I found a more simplistic version, and I have a video on my phone I can show you but it's basically, we found a scanner finally that has only two moving parts to it, it seems to be working at a couple Districts that Paul's using, and I did a little research on it, and basically it fixes an issue that we're having with some of the new driver's licenses, it even scans them in the cars, and it's going to upload to our database, it doesn't require licensing, and it's in my report section, it's from DML, and the proposed amount is for
$3,405.80.
Ms. Castro:  What is the number again? Mr. Quesada:  $3,405.80.
Mr. Winkeljohn: We used to spend 3 times that, so this is a big improvement.
Mr. Aponte: It looks like one of those repeat cameras, I'm pretty sure I've seen them before.
Mr. Quesada:  Less parts and less maintenance. Mr. Winkeljohn:  Could we have this approved? Mr. Aponte:  Yes.
Mr. Compton:  I make a motion to approve the DML proposal for $3,405.80.
Mr.  Cooper:
communities?
So  Ben,  could  you  elaborate  on  the  culvert  cleaning
for  two
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On MOTION by Mr. Compton seconded by Mr. Lopez with all in favor, acce·pting the DML proposal for  guardhouse scanners in an amount not to exceed $3,405.80 was approved.
On MOTION by Ms. Castro seconded by Mr. Cooper with all in favor, the Check Run Summary and Balance Sheet and Income Statement were approved.
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Mr. Quesada: That's something that I discussed on the Portofino, and we're talking about the budget I guess, the Portofino Oaks and Portofino Pointe, we haven't been including in our service the french drains, and it's something that  might increase the budget there in the culvert cleaning for Portofino Oaks and Portofino Pointe. I think that we said we found about 4 drains in each community, that extra service will need to be done and going an extra 50'.
Ms. Castro:  But how come it wasn't included before?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  The regular drain was the drains that go to the lake.
Ms.  Castro:
But  I thought  they  had done a comprehensive  assessment  of the
needs of each community and had come back with whatever it is that we needed, so how come they weren't included if they were so comprehensive about their assessment?
Mr. Winkeljohn: I don't know, that was the original scope they were given, we didn't consider french drains anywhere.
Mr. Cooper:  Rockway, that's who we had it with previously? Mr. Winkeljohn:  Rockline, yes.
Mr. Cooper:  Right, Rockline, and now the new company.
Mr. Winkeljohn: . And when we realized that these french drains were in existence they weren't really on our radar as a community, we were focused on the piped pieces.
Mr. Lopez: There's another problem, is Pebblebrook, I don't think Pebblebrook has ever cleaned their drains.
Ms. Castro:  Never.
Mr. Quesada: I have noticed communities next to bodies of water like Pebblebrook and Waterstone Estates, and Portofino Palms, seems to drain really well, because of their proximity to the bodies of water, so their location is actually beneficial, but that is something they should consider.
Mr. Cooper: What they've done in the past is they do the first cleaning, and if they want, and if we have the agreement already drawn up for them to be able to be included in the culvert process.
Mr. Aponte: Yes, I agree.
Mr. Cooper: They just have to do the first cleaning, and then after then they're included.
Mr. Lopez:  Right.
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Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's up to them, we've asked everybody.
Mr. Quesada: I'm going to have them come out and do an assessment this year, and include the french drains in Portofino Oaks and Portofino Pointe that I just mentioned, and I'll bring it to the Board and you guys can decide if you want to adjust that line item to the budget.
Mr. Cooper:  Ithink the line item in the proposed has increased a little bit. Mr. Winkeljohn:  We'll adjust accordingly when we get the number.
Mr. Cooper:  Ok.
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
Supervisors  Requests Comments
and
Audience
Mr. Cooper:  Ok, no Supervisors requests.
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
Adjournment
Ms. Castro:
Ok, so I make a motion to recess.
Chairman I Vice Chairman
33
On MOTION by Ms. Castro seconded by Mr. Aponte with all in favor, the Meeting was recessed to reconvene at 6:00 p.m. at 1355 Waterstone Way, Homestead, Florida for the Town Hall meeting.




